



Comprehensive Cancer Care Networks (CCCN's)

Catalogue of Requirements for Colorectal and Pancreatic Cancer Centres

Developed in the context of iPAAC from the working group of Work Package 10





Information on the CCCN

Network's area of application:			
Colorectal			
Pancreas			
Clinical site (clinic/place)			
Director of the Centre			
Centre Coordinator			
Network/Main cooperation partners	s		
The Network's cooperation partners a	are registered in a master data	a sheet.	
Preparation / Update			
The electronically generated Catalog details provided there have been che			n of the CCCN. The
The data on outcome quality refer to	the calendar year.		
Preparation/update date of the Catal	oque of Requirements		





Prologue

This Catalogue summarizes the tumour-specific requirements for colorectal and pancreatic tumour patients in Comprehensive Cancer Care Networks. The catalogue is an amendment to the "Catalogue of Req CCCN_draft 1.docx". Both catalogues together are part of the deliverables/results for Work Package 10.

In CCCNs tumour-specific, interdisciplinary and inter-professional networks are established as tumour management groups that cover the entire chain of care from the patient angle. The different chapters of the catalogue reflect the clinical pathway of the patient from diagnosis to follow-up/palliation and include requirements for all disciplines that are part of the network.

After the explanatory remarks of the pilot centres are filled in a peer-review will be performed. The aim of the peer-review is to check if the requirements are fulfilled and the network is therefore properly implemented. If there is potential for quality improvement adequate measures will be agreed on during the onsite audit.







Table of Contents

- 1. General information
 - 1.1 Structure of the network
 - 1.2 Interdisciplinary cooperation
 - 1.3 Cooperation referrers and aftercare
 - 1.4 Psycho-oncology
 - 1.5 Social work and rehabilitation
 - 1.6 Patient involvement
 - 1.7 Study management
 - 1.8 Nursing care
 - 1.9 General service areas (pharmacy, nutritional counselling, speech therapy,...)
- 2. Organ-specific diagnostics
 - 2.1 Consulting hours
 - 2.2 Diagnostics
- 3. Radiology
- 4. (Nuclear medicine)
- 5. Surgical oncology
 - 5.1 (Cross-organ surgical therapy)
 - 5.2 Organ-specific surgical therapy
- 6. Medical oncology/ systemic therapy
 - 6.1 (Medical oncology)
 - 6.2 Organ-specific systemic therapy
- 7. Radio-oncology
- 8. Pathology
- 9. Palliative care and hospice work
- 10. Tumour documentation / Outcome quality

Annexes:

Key figures – Colorectal Key figures – Pancreas

Colour legend "black" relevant for all organs

"pink "only relevant for "colorectal" "red" only relevant for "pancreas"





1. General information on the Centre

1.1 Structure of the network

Sec-	Requirements	Explanatory remarks of the Centre
tion	·	
1.1.1	The names of the persons holding the following positions are to be given:	
- All -	 Director of the Centre (max. 2 direc- 	
	tors/Centre, of whom 1 named contact)	
	Centre Coordinator	
	Centre Coordinator – tasks	
	 Coordination internal/external audits 	
	 Monitoring of Technical and Medical Re- 	
	quirements and ensuring compliance with	
	them	
	Communication interface Steering/monitoring of group appoints and appoints appoints and appoints and appoints and appoints and appoints and	
	 Steering/monitoring of cross-specialty activities 	
1.1.2	Main cooperation partners and cooperation	
	partners can be part of a clinic or also be inde-	
- All -	pendent practices.	
	Main cooperation partners	
	Visceral surgery, gastroenterology, radiother-	
	apy, medical oncologist, pathology, radiology	
	Cooperation partners	
	Psycho-oncology, social work, stoma-therapy	
	(only colorectal), nutritional counselling, physi-	
	otherapy, genetics, pain therapy and self-help	
	group, palliative medicine, diabetology (only	
4.4.0	pancreas)	
1.1.3	Cooperation agreements A cooperation agreement is to be entered into	
- All -	with cooperating treatment partners. Docu-	
	mentation must be provided that they meet	
	the appropriate Technical and Medical Re-	
	quirements of the Catalogue of Requirements	
	(not every service provider has to be a coop-	
	eration partner as well). The cooperation part-	
	ners are to be listed.	
	If the cooperation partners of a Centre work	
	points must be ensured).	
	· · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·	
	·	
	-	
	umentation	
	 The following points are to be regulated: Competences and responsibilities Description of the treatment processes of relevance for the Centre bearing in mind the interfaces Obligation to implement indicated Guidelines Description of cooperation on tumour doc- 	





1. General information on the Centre

1.1 Structure of the network

Sec-	Requirements	Explanatory remarks of the Centre
tion	·	
	Declaration of willingness to cooperate on	
	internal/external audits	
	Undertaking to comply with the criteria of	
	the CoR and the annual submission of the	
	relevant data	
	Upholding of medical confidentiality	
	Participation in specialty training pro-	
	grammes and public relations work	
	 Declaration of consent to be publicly identified as part of the Centre (e.g. homep- 	
- All -	age) Tumour conference	
All	(only to the extent that participation is required	
	under "1.2 Interdisciplinary cooperation")	
	Binding participation	
	Ensuring availability of specialist for the	
	specialty to which binding participation ap-	
	plies	
	 Participation and consensus provisions in 	
	the case of more than 1 cooperation part-	
	ner for each specialty (see also provisions	
	"Interdisciplinary cooperation")	
1.1.4	Presentation of the Centre	
	The overall structure of the Centre is to be	
- All -	presented and made public (e.g. Internet).	
	This also encompasses giving the names of	
	all internal/external cooperation partners with	
	the following details:	
	- Name, address of cooperation partner	
1.1.5	- Cooperation partner with tel./email Strategy planning/Reporting	
1.1.3	It is recommended to conduct an annual review	
- All -	on the management level in which the following	
	aspects, for instance, are examined:	
	 Goal definition/assessment, where appro- 	
	priate new orientation of goals	
	Consideration of audit results	
	(internal/external)	
	Human resources for Centre management	
	(Centre Coordinator)	
	 Public relations work/Patient information 	
	 Tumour documentation/Outcome quality 	
1.1.6	Further/additional training	
 	 A qualification plan for the cooperation 	
- All -	partners as described in 1.1.1 is to be	
	submitted in which the qualification	
	measures planned for the coming year are	
	described.	
	At least 1 unit of colorectal and pancreatic	
	cancer specific further/additional training	
	per staff member (duration > 0.5 days), to	





1. General information on the Centre

1.1 Structure of the network

Sec- tion	Requirements	Explanatory remarks of the Centre
	the extent that the staff member performs tasks relevant to the quality of the CCCN.	
1.1.7	On-the-job training concept	
	The process of familiarising new members of	
- All -	staff must follow a specified on-the-job training	
	concept	
1.1.8	Accessibility/obligation to be on call	
	A specialist in radiation therapy and urology	
- All -	must be present during working hours and	
	have 24/7 on-call duty outside of working	
	hours (including weekends and holidays), if	
	necessary via cooperation	

1.2 Interdisciplinary cooperation

Sec-	Requirements	Explanatory remarks of the Centre
tion	Nequilente	Explanatory remarks of the Centre
1.2.1	The centres must operate	
- Colo- rectal -	 30 patients annually with a primary diagnosis of colon carcinomas 20 patients annually with a primary diagnosis of rectal carcinomas 	
- Pan-creas -	 The Centre must treat 25 patients annually with a primary diagnosis of pancreatic cancer (ICD-10 C 25). Definition: Patients and not stays or surgical procedures Adenocarcinomas, neuroendocrine carcinomas are counted. IPMNs (intraductal papillary mucinous neoplasms) are not counted. Histological/cytological findings must be available (biopsy or resection) from primary tumour or metastasis with concomitant presence of a pancreatic tumour in medical imaging. Pat. with initial disease The time of counting is the time of the histological confirmation of diagnosis Patients, who are only presented for the purposes of seeking a second opinion or for the purposes of consultation, are not included. 	
1.2.2 - All -	Cycle/Participants tumour conference A tumour conference must be held at least once a week.	
	For the following specialties participation by specialists in the conference is mandatory:	





	Visceral surgery	
	 Gastro-enterology 	
	 Radiotherapy 	
	Medical oncologist	
	Pathology	
	Radiology	
	Metastases:	
	In the case of organ metastases, a surgeon	
	with the corresponding specialisation and spe-	
	cific expertise is to be consulted.	
	Depending on the indication, other partici-	
	pants (palliative medicine, psycho-oncology,	
	etc.) are to be invited.	
1.2.3	General requirements tumour conference	
	'	
- All -	Several cooperation partners	
	If several cooperation partners are named for	
	a specialty, then the presence of one repre-	
	sentative is sufficient as long as the formal-	
	ised exchange of information between the	
	partners is in place (e.g. via quality circles).	
	Independently thereof, each cooperation part-	
	ner must take part in the tumour conference at	
	least once a month.	
	Web/online conference	
	If web conferences are used, it must be possi-	
	ble to transmit the sound and documents pre-	
	sented. It must be possible for each main co-	
	operation partner to present its own docu-	
	ments/imaging material. Telephone confer-	
	ences with no imaging material are not an op-	
101	tion.	
1.2.4	Recurrence/metastasis	
- Colo-	Surgical responsibilities for metastasis re- saction are to be loid down (in particular).	
rectal -	section are to be laid down (in particular	
	liver, lung) where appropriate by means of	
	cooperation.	
	Therapeutic approaches (curative and palli- ative) for metastacia surgery and redicts are	
*	ative) for metastasis surgery and radiother-	
	apy (e.g. stereotactic irradiation of brain tu- mours) are to be laid down in the descrip-	
	tions of the procedures.	
	 Patients with primary unresectable liver me- 	
	tastasis should be regularly presented dur-	
	ing systemic therapy for evaluation in the	
	tumour conference.	
1.2.5	Demonstration imaging material	
1.2.0	Patient-related imaging material must be	
	available at the conference and suitable tech-	
	nical equipment must be provided for the	
	presentation of this material.	
1.2.6	Preparation tumour conference	
1.2.0	The main patient and treatment data are	
	to be compiled in writing beforehand and	
	made available to the participants at the	
	conference.	
	0011101011001	





	A pre-appraisal of suitable study patients	
	is to be undertaken.	
	All patients with recurrences and/or me-	
	tastases, who have entrusted the Centre	
1.2.7	with their care, are to be presented. Minutes of the tumour conference	
1.2.7	The results of the tumour conference con-	
	sist, <i>inter alia</i> , of a written, interdisciplinary	
	treatment plan ("Minutes tumour confer-	
	ence").	
	The minutes of the tumour conference	
	must be available at all times in a secure	
	manner to all main cooperation partners	
	and can, at the same time, constitute the	
	medical report.	
	The "minutes of the tumour conference"	
	should be automatically generated from	
	the tumour documentation system.	
	The outcome of the tumour conference is to be recorded in the tumour documenta-	
	tion system.	
1.2.8	Participation tumour conference as further	
1.2.0	training	
	For the following functions/professional	
	groups, participation in the tumour conference	
	is to be made possible:	
	Assistant staff (MTA, MTRA,) from the	
	fields of radiology and radiotherapy	
	Staff members social services and psy-	
	cho-oncology	
	Specialist oncology nurse and at least 2	
	nurses for each treatment unit	
	Participation in the tumour conference is	
	recognised as further training for the	
	aforementioned functions/professional	
1.2.9	groups. Therapy deviation	<u> </u>
1.2.3	The therapeutic procedure should be ori-	
	ented towards the treatment plans or rec-	
	ommendations of the tumour conference.	
	If any deviations from the original therapy	
	plan or deviations from the Guidelines are	
	observed, they must be recorded and	
	evaluated. Depending on the cause,	
	avoidance measures are to be taken.	
	If therapy is not started or terminated	
	prematurely at the patient's request (de-	
	spite an existing indication), this must also	
4.0.40	be recorded.	
1.2.10	Morbidity/mortality conference	
	The conference can be staged on the same date as the tumour conference.	
	A list of participants is kept.Conferences are to be held at least twice	
	Conferences are to be held at least twice a year.	
	Cases with a special course of the dis-	
	ease or a course that needs to be im-	
	proved are to be discussed. Patients who	
L	provod dro to bo dioddoodd. I dtiorito Wilo	





	died post-surgery/post-intervention must	
	definitely be discussed.	
1011	Minutes are to be taken of conferences.	
1.2.11	Quality circles	
	Tasks, circle of participants and contents the guality simples are to be laid down.	
	of the quality circles are to be laid down.	
	Conferences are to be held at least three times a year.	
	A list of participants is kept.	
	The quality circles must produce clear re-	
	sults (actions, decisions) which seem	
	likely to bring about a major further devel-	
	opment of/improvement in the Centre.	
	The outcome of the quality circles is to be	
	recorded.	
	Possible topics:	
	Analysis of outcome quality (benchmark-	
	ing)	
	Interdisciplinary further training Interdisciplinary case reviews	
	Interdisciplinary case reviews Structural improvements to the Centre	
	Structural improvements to the CentrePublic relations	
	Fublic relations	
	At the time of initial certification one quality cir-	
	cle must have taken place.	
1.2.12	Further training	
	Further training events are to be offered	
	for the network of the Oncology Centre at	
	least twice a year (where appropriate also	
	after the MM conferences/quality circles).	
	Contents/results and participation are to be recorded. A further training plan is to	
	be recorded. A further training plan is to be presented.	
1.2.13	Events of the Centre	
	Each main cooperation partner must partici-	
	pate in at least two of the Centre's events.	
	The following are recognised:	
	Quality circles	
	Morbidity/mortality conference	
4.0	• Further training	
1.2.14	Treatment plan/minutes of the tumour board	
	In principle, therapeutic procedures A pould be in accordance to the treatment	
	should be in accordance to the treatment	
	plans and/or recommendations by the tu- mour board.	
	Any deviations from the recommended ther-	
	apy plan must be presented to the tumour	
	tient's record.	
	board and must be documented in the patient's record.	





1.3	Cooperation referrers and aftercare	
Sec- tion	Requirements	Explanatory remarks of the Centre
1.3.1 - All -	 Referrer satisfaction survey Every three years a referrer satisfaction survey must be conducted. The results of this survey are to be evaluated and analysed. A cross-department survey can be recognised. The referrer satisfaction survey must be available for the first time for the first surveillance audit 	

1.4	Psycho-oncology	
Sec- tion	Requirements	Explanatory remarks of the Centre
1.4.1 - All -	Psycho-oncology A psycho-oncologist is available for the Centre	

1.5	Social work and rehabilitation	
Sec-	Requirements	Explanatory remarks of the Centre
tion		
1.5.1	Social services	
	A social worker is available for the Centre	
- All -		

1.6	Patient involvement	
Sec-	Requirements	Explanatory remarks of the Centre
tion		
1.6.1	Patient surveys:	
	A concept for a patient survey must be developed	
- All -		
1.6.2	Patient information (general)	
	Patient information must be provided. Including	
- All -	information and presentation of the CCCN with all	
	cooperation partners and treatment options	
1.6.3	Discharge consultation:	
	Each patient is given a discharge consultation	
- All -	(short documentation/check list) in which at least	
	the following topics are addressed:	
	Therapy planning	
	 Individual aftercare plan (where appropriate 	
	handing over of an aftercare pass)	
- Pan-	 Information on possible secondary diseases 	
creas -	(e.g. diabetes) and the related risks (e.g. hy-	
	poglycaemias)	
1.6.4	Patient information (case-related):	
	The patient is given the following documents:	
- All -	Medical report / discharge letter (including	
	details tumour conference / treatment plan)	
	Aftercare plan / aftercare pass	
	where applicable, study documents	





1.6	Patient involvement	
Sec-	Requirements	Explanatory remarks of the Centre
tion		
	It is recommended that patients are given a cen-	
	tral /structured folder for the documents. The pro-	
	cedure for the provision of patient information is	
	to be standardised.	
1.6.5	Complaint management	
	A regular system of complaint management must	
- All -	be in place.	
1.6.6	Self-help groups	
	The self-help groups, with which the CCCN ac-	
- All -	tively cooperates, are to be named. If possible, the	
	self-help group should consider the specific needs	
	of visceral oncology patients (keyword - affected	
	by the same condition).	
1.6.7	Self-help groups	
	The self-help groups, with which the CCCN ac-	
- All -	tively cooperates, are to be named.	
1.6.8	Information/dialogue with patient:	
	Adequate information must be provided about di-	
	agnosis and therapy planning and a dialogue is	
	to be entered into. This includes inter alia:	
	Presentation of alternative treatment con-	
	cepts	
	Offer of and aid in obtaining second opinions	
	Discharge consultation as a standard proce-	
	dure	
	A general description is to be given of the way in	
	which information is provided and the dialogue	
	organised. This is to be documented for each pa-	
	tient in medical reports and minutes/records.	

1.7		
Sec-	Requirements	Explanatory remarks of the Centre
tion		
1.7.1	Access to studies	
	It must be possible for patients to access studies.	
- All -	The studies conducted at the Centre must be	
	listed and published, for instance on the Centre's	
	homepage (including short description of the	
	study).	
1.7.2		
	Proportion of study patients	
- All -	at least 5% of primary cases	
	Only the introduction of patients into studies with	
	a positive vote of the ethics committee is counted	
	as study participation	





List of the studies

List of studies - colon/rectum 1)

Responsible cooperation partner ²⁾	Name of the study	Centre patients Recruited in 2017 ³⁾
Numerator Indic	ator No. 6 "Study rate"	

List of studies - pancreas 1)

Responsible cooperation partner ²⁾	Name of the study	Centre patients Recruited in 2017 ³⁾
Numerator Indic	ator No. 6 "Study rate"	

1) The list of studies must be processed. It is not possible to refer to the Catalogue of Requirements of the Oncology Centre.

2) Responsible cooperation partners: Study unit/specialty unit running the study (e.g. department for radio-oncology, joint haematology/oncology practice Dr. Smith; ...) Designation cooperation partners identical to details on www.oncomap.de, if listed 3) Only those study patients can be counted who are listed as Centre patients in the Centre and were included in the study in 2017

(no double counting of study patients in more than 1 Centre).





1.8	Nursing care	
Sec- tion	Requirements	Explanatory remarks of the Centre
1.8.1	Specialised oncological nurses At least one active oncological nurse must be in-	
- All -	volved at the centre.	
1.8.2	Stoma therapy	
- Colo- rectal -	 Staff Qualifications of management in stoma therapy Availability of qualified stand-ins must be ensured Members of staff have to be named If stoma therapy services are provided externally, a cooperation agreement must be concluded. 	
1.8.3	Stomatherapy – Definition of tasks	
- Colo- rectal -	 Pre-inpatient or pre-operative and post-inpatient instructions, counselling and training of patients and their relatives. Participation in pre-operative marking (or regulated exchange of experience) Where appropriate, holding of stoma consulting hours 	
1.8.4	Stomatherapy – Equipment / infrastructure • Own premises	
- Colo- rectal -	 Possibilities presentation of demonstration material Storage opportunities for material for stoma care 	
1.8.5	Stomatherapy – Exchange surgery Regulated information for surgeon particularly	
- Colo- rectal -	in the case of infections, need for surgical corrections,)	
1.8.6	Stomatherapy – documentation of therapy	
- Colo- rectal -	 Documentation in inpatient patient record (documents of the stoma therapists alone not sufficient) Stoma pass for patients 	
1.8.7	Stomatherapy – discharge Further care after discharge is to be described in-	
- Colo- rectal -	cluding provision of information for patients.	





1.9 **General service areas**

Sec-	Requirements	Explanatory remarks of the Centre		
tion				
1.9.1	Pastoral care			
- All -	 Pastoral care in the Centre is to be ensured Patients must be given the option of care (need is to be actively identified) 			
1.9.2	Nutritional counselling			
- All -	Nutritional counselling must be a component of the Centre's services			

Organ-specific diagnostics Consulting hours 2.

2.1

Sec-	Doguiromente	Explanatory remarks of the Contra
tion	Requirements	Explanatory remarks of the Centre
2.1.1	Special consulting hours colorectal/pancreatic	
2.1.1	Special consulting flours colorectal/paricleatic	
	At least 1 per week	
	The road of por wook	
2.1.2	Waiting times special consulting hours	
	• < 2 weeks waiting time for a consulting hours	
	appointment	
	 < 60 minute waiting time during consulting 	
	hours	
2.1.3	Clarification tumour dignity	
	100% clarification dignity already prior to radical	
- Colo- rectal -	surgical procedure	
	(Reasons for deviations are to be given)	
2.1.4	Spread diagnosis	
- Colo-	Within one week the following tests must be un-	
rectal -	dertaken: • Abdominal ultrasound	
	X-ray (lung)CEA test	
	• CEA lest	
	If necessary (again within 1 week)	
	Other x-ray examinations	
	CT/MRI; PET-CT (optional)	
	Scintigraphy	
	Urological examination	
	Gynaecological examination	
2.1.5	Qualification rectum diagnosis	
	J. Total	
- Colo-	Details expertise per treatment unit for:	
rectal -	Rectal endosonography	
	Rigid rectoscopy	
	Chromoendoscopy	
	 Proctology 	
2.1.6	Stenosis	
	In the case of a non-passable coloscopic steno-	
- Colo-	sis, a renewed full coloscopy must be undertaken	
rectal -	post-operatively for 100% of all patients within 3-	
	6 months.	





Organ-specific diagnostics Consulting hours 2.

2.1

Sec- tion	Requirements	Explanatory remarks of the Centre
tion	The unit responsible for performing (monitoring	
	appointments) the coloscopy must be clearly defined.	
2.1.7	Prevention / screening for asymptomatic population	
- Colo- rectal -	External or in-house programmes for coun-	
	selling risk groups, lifestyle and nutritional recommendations (information events, infor-	
	mation material)Activities to increase attendance of coloscopy	
0.4.0	check-ups and FOBT	
2.1.8	Genetic counselling Cooperation with genetic counselling is to be reg-	
- Colo- rectal -	ulated in a cooperation agreement.	
	Cooperation must be proven by way of docu-	
	mented cases during the current assessment period.	
2.1.9	Identification and procedure for risk groups (fo	
	Identification and procedure for risk groups (familial and elevated risk)	
- Colo- rectal -	Risk persons are to be identified and documented when recording their medical history on	
	admission. They have the following characteris-	
	tics in particular: • age < 50 years	
	• prior colorectal carcinoma or endometrial car-	
	cinomaone or more colorectal carcinomas in close	
	family members	
	 Endometrial urothelial, small intestine or gastric carcinoma in close family members 	
- Colo- rectal -	The algorithms for the genetic diagnostic procedure and molecular-pathological clarification in	
	the case of suspected HNPCC and medical his-	
	tory sheets for the identification of risk persons to clarify the familial and hereditary risk and an in-	
	formation letter about elevated risk of disease on-	
	set and recommended early detection tests for close family members can be downloaded on	
	http://www.krebsgesellschaft.de/deutsche- krebsgesellschaft-wtrl/deutsche-krebsgesell-	
	schaft/zertifizierung/erhebungsboegen/organk-	
- Pan-	rebszentren.html in the section colorectal cancer. Spread diagnosis / diagnostic confirmation	
creas -	Within one week the following tests must be undertaken:	
	Abdominal ultrasound	
	Endosonography upper gastrointestinal tract (Proof of competence at least 20 and one)	
	(Proof of competence: at least 30 endoso- nographies/examining physician/year)	
	 Endoscopic ultrasound fine needle biopsy in 	
	the <u>abdomen</u> (not only pancreas punctures	





Organ-specific diagnostics Consulting hours

2. 2.1

Sec-	Requirements	Explanatory remarks of the Centre		
tion				
	required) (Proof of competence: at least 10/ examining physician/year) • Multidetector CT • MRI with MRCP • Interventional ERCP (Proof of competence: at least 50/examining physician/year) • X-ray (lung)			
	If necessary (again within 1 week): Other X-ray examinations CT/MRI; PET-CT (optional) Scintigraphy			

Diagnostics 2.2

Sec- tion	Requirements	Explanatory remarks of the Centre
2.2.1	Qualification of coloscopy diagnosticians	
۲.۲.۱	 Specialist for internal medicine and gastroen- 	
- Colo-	terology or surgery	
rectal -	15.5.5.5 5, 51 54.55.7	
	At least 2 specialists (in the practice-based sector	. /
- Colo-	1 specialist with corresponding cross-over staff	
rectal -	provision)	
	The names of the specialists are to be given.	
	Experience examining physician:	
	Experience examining physician:Coloscopies: 200 patients annually Polypec-	
	tomies: 50 patients annually	
- Colo-	Authorisation of new examining physicians in the	
rectal -	last 3 years at least 200 coloscopies and 50 poly-	
	pectomies.	
- Colo-	Each coloscopy and polypectomy is to be per-	
rectal -	formed / supervised by an examining physician	
	who has the above-mentioned experience.	
2.2.2	Performance coloscopy	
0-1	Signed declared consent	
- Colo- rectal -	Patient monitoring	
. 50101	Pulse oxymetry	
	Documentation using surveillance sheet after	
	examination with sedation	
	Photo documentation Completeness of the examination	
	(ileocecal valve, cecal pole, terminal ileum)	
	Polyp removal points (before - after)	
	Aftercare recommendation	
	Timing control coloscopy	
- Colo-	Complication rate therapeutic Coloscopies	
rectal -	Full elective coloscopies	
2.2.3	Requirements coloscopy	
	 Full coloscopy with biopsy of each suspected 	
- Colo- rectal -	spot including a rectal examination	





2.2 Diagnostics

Sec-	Requirements	Explanatory remarks of the Centre
tion		
2.2.4	Outpatient polyp removal	
	 Possibilities of stypsis 	
- Colo-	 Recording of complications 	
rectal -	 Procedure for handing over non-removable 	
	polyps in office-based practices to the inpa-	
	tient departments of the Colorectal Cancer	
	Centre.	
	- Names of contacts	
	 Definition passing on of information 	
2.2.5	Pathology report for adenoma	
	 Distinction between low-grade versus high- 	
- Colo-	grade intraepithelial neoplasms	
rectal -	 Details of completeness of removal 	
	Pathology report for carcinoma in adenoma	
	Scale of in-depth infiltration	
	(sm-/pT category)	
	Degree of histological differentiation (grading)	
	 Presence or lack of lymph vessel invasion (L) 	
	classification)	
	Evaluation of resection margins	
	(R classification)	
	Low-risk/high-risk classification	
2.2.6	Presentation in the tumour conference	
0-1-	Each carcinoma in the adenoma must be pre-	
- Colo- rectal -	sented in the tumour conference.	
2.2.7	Communication of results polypectomy	
	In-person discussion/information about malignant	
- Colo-	findings (not on the phone) by coloscopy unit	
rectal -		
2.2.8	Infrastructure/work environment	
Colo	Emergency equipment	
- Colo- rectal -	Available emergency equipment and written	
	action plan for emergencies	
	 Preparation, sterilisation and traceability of 	
	instruments	





Experience examining physician colorectal - coloscopies/polypectomies

Coloscopy unit (practice/clinic department)	Title, name, first name	Centre ¹⁾ from to	Number coloscopies ≥ 200 patients a year	Number poly- pectomies ≥ 50 patients a year

¹⁾ Period normally the previous calendar year (=indicator year); deviations e.g. in staff fluctuation, appointment of examining physicians for less than one year; in the event of unclear fulfilment 1 examining physician can also be listed twice for 2 periods (e.g. previous calendar year and current year up to date of submission CR)

3. Radiology

Sec-	Requirements	Explanatory remarks of the Centre
tion		
3.1	Specialists	
	At least 1 radiology specialist	
- All -	Cross-cover provision of staff with the same qualification is to be documented in writing.	
	The names of the specialist and cross-cover	
	staff are to be given.	
3.2	Procedures available in radiology:	
	 conventional X-ray 	
- All -	• spiral-CT	
	MRI (field strength at least 1.5 Tesla)	
3.3	Standard operating procedures (SOPs) for radiol-	
	ogy	
- All -	The imaging techniques are to be described and	
	checked once a year to ensure they are up to	
	date.	

4 Nuclear medicine





5. Surgical oncology

5.1 Cross-organ surgical oncology

5.2 Organ-specific surgical therapy

Sec-	Requirements	Explanatory remarks of the Centre
tion		
5.2.1	Post-operative care	
	Care in the following areas is to be laid down in a	
- All -	standard operating procedure (SOP):	
	Intensive care (incl. e.g. artificial respiration,	
	tracheotomy etc.)	
	Physiotherapy	
	Post-operative pain management	
	Return to normal food intake	
5.2.2	Surgeons	
- All -	Basic qualification surgeon	
	The basic qualification is specialist for visceral	
	surgery according to country specific require-	
	ments	
- Colo-	or specialist for general surgery with the Eu-	
rectal -	ropean qualification EBSQ Coloproctology	
- Pan-		
creas	or specialist for general surgery with the Eu- repear gualification FRSO Hands Papers	
	ropean qualification EBSQ Hepato-Pancre-	
- All -	atico-Biliary Surgery (HPB)	
- All -	All patients of the Centre must be operated	
	on directly by one of these surgeons or under	
A.II	his/her supervision (second surgeon).	
- All -	Assistant operation	
	Recognition as assistant operation only pos-	
	sible if this is done as part of training (no par-	
	allel recognition of cases with 2 surgeons).	
- Colo-	Colorectal surgeons	Names listed in the table "Colorectal surgeons"
rectal -	The names of at least 2 colorectal surgeons	(at the end of this section)
	are to be given.	
	Expertise for each colorectal surgeon (primary	
~	cases)	
	15 colon carcinomas a year	
	10 rectal carcinomas a year	
	Authorisation of new colorectal surgeons in the	
	previous 3 years cumulative at least 20 rectal and	
	at least 30 colon carcinomas (proof of compe-	
	tence based on surgical reports).	
	Expertise senior colorectal surgeon (primary	
	cases)	
	On appointment	
	45 colon carcinomas and 30 rectal carcino-	
	mas in the previous 5 years	
	On extension	
	Valid qualification certificate 5 years; require-	
	ment for extension 45 colon carcinomas and	
	30 rectal carcinomas in the previous 5 years	
- Pan-	Pancreas surgeon	Names given in the table "Pancreas surgeons"
creas -	3-	(at the end of this section)
1	I .	(41 110 0114 07 1110 0001011)





5.2 Organ-specific surgical therapy

Sec- tion	Requirements	Explanatory remarks of the Centre
	 The names of at least 2 pancreas surgeons are to be given (pancreas surgeon can also be colorectal surgeon) Expertise of each pancreas surgeon 10 pancreatic resections a year 	
	 Authorisation of new pancreas surgeons In the previous 3 years cumulative at least 20 pancreatic resections 	
5.2.3	Emergency treatment	
- AII -	 Emergency treatment (e.g. bowel obstruction, bleeding) is to be laid down in a standard operating procedure (SOP). Shift planning for qualified staff (roster/on call rota) 	
- Colo- rectal -	Surgically removed lymph nodes The right oncological decision is to operate (<i>inter alia</i> at least 12 lymph nodes). Any deviation from this is to be discussed with the pathologist.	
- Pan- creas -	The right oncological decision is to operate (<i>inter alia</i> at least 12 regional lymph nodes.) Any deviation from this is to be discussed with the pathologist.	

Table "Colorectal surgeons"

Title, name, first name	Senior colo- rectal surgeon	Period ²⁾ from to	Number surgical procedures ³⁾ colon ≥ 15	Number surgical procedures ³⁾ rectum ≥ 10	Clinical site/clinic 4)

Table "Pancreas surgeons"

Title, name, first name	Period ²⁾ from to	Number surgical procedures pan- creas ≥ 10	Clinical site/clinic 4)

- 1) Precondition senior colorectal surgeon (as specified in CR 5.2.5): positive qualification evaluation by OnkoZert and appointment by the Colorectal Cancer Centre (max. 1 senior colorectal surgeon per Centre)
- 2) Period normally the previous calendar year (=indicator year); deviations e.g. in staff fluctuation, appointment of surgeons for less than one year; in the event of unclear fulfilment 1 surgeon can also be listed twice for 2 periods (e.g. previous calendar year and current year up to date of submission CR)
- 3) There is no annual expertise requirement for senior colorectal surgeons
- 4) What is relevant for multi-site Centres or for the case that a surgeon regularly works in several clinical sites/clinics as a surgeon (surgical expertise is to be detailed for each clinical site/clinic)





6. Medical oncology / systemic therapy

6.1 Medical oncology

6.2 Organ-specific systemic therapy

Sec-	Requirements	Explanatory remarks of the Centre
tion	1.10 40.11.01.110	
6.2.1	Physicians' qualifications	
	Medical oncologist or specialist for internal medi-	
- All -	cine and gastroenterology or specialist for radio-	
	therapy	
	The radio-oncologist can perform chemotherapy	
	in conjunction with radio-chemotherapy concepts.	
	The name of one representative with the above-	
	mentioned qualification is to be given.	
	The specialists named here must actively carry	
	out the medicinal tumour therapy. The delegation	
	of responsibilities to physicians without the	
0.00	above-mentioned qualification is not possible.	
6.2.2	Specialised Nurses	
- All -	Requirements for the specialised nurse responsible for administering chemotherapy:	
7.11	• • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • •	
	At least 1 year of professional experience in oncology	
	 50 chemo therapy applications/annually (esti- 	
	mations possible for initial certification, proof	
	must be provided in the following years in the	
	audits)	
6.2.3	On call/reachability medical staff	
	 24-hour outside normal working hours includ- 	
- All -	ing weekends and public holidays	
	During 24-hour reachability access to therapy	
	data must be possible.	
6.2.4	Case numbers per treatment unit	
	Calculation method: chemotherapy per patient	
- All -	(consisting of several cycles or applications)	
	In the event of a shortfall, expertise cannot be	
	documented via cooperation (must be docu-	
	mented for each individual treatment unit).	
	At least 000 shows the second	
- Colo-	At least 200 chemotherapy sessions a year or	
rectal -	at least 50 patients with a specific indication	
- Pan-	(colon/rectum) at least 20 patients with a specific indication	
creas -	(pancreas)	
6.2.5	Basic diagnosis laboratory	
0.2.0	Basic diagnosis including emergency laboratory	
- All -	must be possible 24 h. If laboratory is not staffed	
	24 h, written rules/agreement for 24 h emergency	
	laboratory are required.	
6.2.6	Basic diagnosis medical imaging	
- All -		





6.2 Organ-specific systemic therapy

Sec-	Requirements	Explanatory remarks of the Centre
tion	·	
	Cooperation for ultrasound and radiological	
	emergency and routine diagnosis If medical im-	
	aging is not staffed 24 h, written rules/agreement for 24 h emergency diagnosis is required.	
6.2.7	Systemic therapy regimens	
0.2.7	The drawing up of / changes to existing ther-	
- All -	apy regimens must be undertaken by means	
	of regulated release.	
	Prior to release or changes to therapy regi-	
	mens, the expert opinion of pharmacists can	
	be sought.	
	The therapy regimens are to be protected	
	from any unauthorised changes.	
	The therapy regimens are comparable be- tween the outpatient and inpatient units.	
	tween the outpatient and inpatient units.	
	Therapy plans	
	All systemic therapy must be planned on the	
	basis of a therapy regimen.	
	The therapy plans are to be checked and re-	
	leased.	
6.2.8	Cytostatic preparation	
- All -	Production is undertaken with due considera- tion of statutory provisions in a pharmacy. If it	
/ ***	tion of statutory provisions in a pharmacy. If it is not part of the facility, a care agreement	
	must be entered into.	
	It must be possible to speak to the pharmacy	
	during the period in which therapy is adminis-	
	tered. 24-hour on-call service is required for	
	inpatients.	
	Standard operating procedures (SOPs) are to be drawn up for production.	
6.2.9	Standard operating procedures (SOPs)	
0.2.0	The SOP for medicinal oncological therapy is	
- All -	to be described for all phases (start, conduct	
	and conclusion of therapy).	
	Supportive measures in accordance with the	
	guidelines are to be described for the individ-	
	ual therapy concepts and documented in de-	
	tail for each patient.	
6.2.10	Standards comorbidities and secondary diseases	
0.20	Standards are to be drawn up for the treatment of	
- All -	comorbidities and secondary diseases, in particu-	
	lar for the treatment of paravasates, infections	
	and thromboembolic complications.	
6.2.11	Emergency treatment	
- AII -	Available emergency equipment and written action plan for emergencies	
7 111	Lion plan for emergencies	





7 Radio-oncology

Sec-	Requirements	Explanatory remarks of the Centre
tion	requirements	Explanatory remains of the Sentice
7.1	Specialists.	
1	At least two specialists	
- All -	Specialists are to be designated by name	
7.2	Medical physicist	
1 .2	At least one medical physicist must be available	
- All -	in the department on workdays	
	Medical physicists and their backups are to be	
	designated by name	
	A back-up plan must be formulated in writing	
7.3	Accessibility/obligation to be on call	
	A specialist in radiation therapy must be present dur-	
- All -	ing working hours and have 24/7 on-call duty outside	
	of working hours (including weekends and holidays),	
	if necessary via cooperation	
7.4	Required technical equipment and radiation treatment	
	plan/techniques	
- All -	One accelerator with >= 6 MV photons with at	
	least 6-15 MeV electrons	
	Description of the technical equipment	
	A contingency plan (tandem solution) formulated	
	in writing	
	Radiation treatment planning:	
	Therapy simulator or virtual simulation	
	Planning CT	
	3D radiation treatment planning system	
7.5	Waiting time	
	Period between patient's first contact and the ini-	
- All -	tial presentation: < 10 Days	
	Period between the initial presentation and be-	
	ginning of treatment, provided there are no medi-	
	cal reasons to the contrary:	
	< 4 weeks	
	The actual overall treatment time should not ex-	
	ceed the prescribed overall treatment time by	
	more than 10%. Interruptions in radiotherapy for	
	medical reasons or by the patient constitute exceptions	
	The waiting periods are to be surveyed by ran-	
	dom sampling and statistically assessed (recom-	
	mendation: assessment period	
	4 weeks per year).	
7.6	Consultation hours	
	It must be ensured that every patient is pre-	
- All -	sented to a physician before the beginning of a	
	radiation treatment series	
	At least one additional contact with a physician	
	must be documented at the radiotherapy facility	
	during a radiation treatment series	
7.7	Documentation/tumour monitoring	
	The doses that are prescribed are to be recorded	
- All -	according to the guidelines.	
	A documented reason must be given for devia-	
	tions from the prescribed dose.	





7 Radio-oncology

Sec- tion	Requirements	Explanatory remarks of the Centre
	Support measures in keeping with the guidelines are to be described for individual therapy con- cepts and documented in detail in relation to the individual patient.	
7.8 - All -	Simultaneous chemoradiotherapy The procedure for sequential/simultaneous chemoradiotherapy has to be described. If the radiation oncologist does not perform the simultaneous chemoradiotherapy him/herself, the responsibilities for the treatment of side effects, interruptions of radiotherapy, dose specification and dose reductions must be clearly defined beforehand. The joint treatment plan must also be signed by a specialist in radiotherapy in every case.	
	Treatment documentation: Blood-count checks and laboratory tests must be documented by the radiation oncologist during radio- chemotherapy.	
7.9 - All -	Palliative radiotherapy In cases of palliative radiotherapy, the intention of the therapy (local control or solely to alleviate symptoms) must be documented. Palliative medical measures, as well as the development of symptoms and adverse effects, must be described especially in relation to therapy concepts intended to alleviate symptoms and documented in relation to the individual patient. Simultaneously administered pharmacotherapy	
	(e.g. pain or tumour-specific therapy) must be documented.	

8. Pathology

Sec-	Requirements	Explanatory remarks of the Centre
tion		
8.1	Specialists	
- All -	 At least 2 qualified specialists for pathology The specialists are to be designated by name Specialists (director and at least 1 other specialist). 	
8.2	Number of cases: Pathological Institute	
A.II	At least 15,000 histological (incl. cytological) exami-	
- All -	nations per year (case numbers, documentation via journal entry number)	
	•	
Colorec- tal	At least 50 examined colon/rectum biopsies At least 50 examined colon/rectum specimens	
- Pan- creas -	Every year at least 12 pancreatic surgery histologies	
8.3	Procedures that must be available Immunohistochemical examinations	





8. Pathology

Itom - All - In-situ hybridisation - Molecular pathology These special services can only be delegated to pathological institutes. The institutes should have a recognised QM system or a valid accreditation or be able to document successful participation in round robin tests. 8.4 Fozen section analysis (cryosection) - All - The technical and organisational prerequisites for frozen section analysis must be fulfilled. - An operational cryostat must be available - Virtual slide telepathology is not acceptable 8.5 Retention frome - All - Archiving of paraffin blocks ≥ 10 years, - Retention of wet tissue ≥ 4 weeks. - Cryopreservation should also be possible 8.6 Parameters for frozen sections Time required and time measured from arrival in pathology (in min.) to announcing the result (benchmark max. 30 minutes) Evaluation of time needed: min./max./range figure 8.7 Pathology reports for the macroscopic report and the microscopic examination must contain 100% of the information required by the guideline. The following information is required: - Site - Tumour type acc. to WHO classification - Tumour invasion depth (pT classification) - Status of the regional lymph nodes (pN classification) - Number of lymph nodes analysed Number of lymph nodes analysed Number of lymph nodes affected - Grading - The pathologist must always indicate the resection edges and the minimum safety distance (quality indicator derived from the guideline); (deviations must be explained). - R classification - Lymph/blood-vessel invasion - TME quality (quality indicator derived from the guideline); (deviations must be explained). - Pane - Mandatory information pathology report	Sec-	Requirements	Explanatory remarks of the Centre
- All - Nesitu hybridisation • Molecular pathology These special services can only be delegated to pathological institutes. The institutes should have a recognised QM system or a valid accreditation or be able to document successful participation in round robin tests. 8.4 Frozen section analysis (cryosection) • The technical and organisational prerequisites for frozen section analysis must be fulfilled. • An operational cryostat must be available • Virtual slide telepathology is not acceptable 8.5 Retention time • Archiving of paraffin blocks ≥ 10 years, • Archiving of paraffin blocks ≥ 10 years, • Retention of wet tissue ≥ 4 weeks. • Cryopreservation should also be possible 8.6 Parameters for frozen sections Time required and time measured from arrival in pathology (in min.) to announcing the result (benchmark max. 30 minutes) Evaluation of time needed: min/max/frange figure 8.7 Pathology reports for the macroscopic report and the microscopic examination must contain 100% of the information is required: • Site • Tumour type acc. to WHO classification) • Status of the regional lymph nodes (pN classification) • Status of the regional lymph nodes (pN classification) • Tumour invasion depth (pT classification) • Status of the regional lymph nodes (pN classification) • Number of lymph nodes analysed • Retasification • Lymph/blood-vessel invasion • TME quality (quality indicator derived from the guideline); (deviations must be explained). • Retassification • Lymph/blood-vessel invasion • TME quality (quality indicator derived from the guideline); (deviations must be explained).		requirements	Explanatory romains of the control
Molecular pathology These special services can only be delegated to pathological institutes. The institutes should have a recognised QM system or a valid accreditation or be able to document successful participation in round robin tests. 8.4 Frozen section analysis (cryosection) The technical and organisational prerequisites for frozen section analysis must be fulfilled. An operational cryostat must be available Virtual slide telepathology is not acceptable 8.5 Retention time Archiving of paraffin blocks ≥ 10 years, Retention of wet tissus ≥ 4 weeks. Cryopreservation should also be possible 8.6 Parameters for frozen sections Time required and time measured from arrival in pathology (in min.) to announcing the result (benchmark max. 30 minutes) Evaluation of time needed: min./max./range figure 8.7 Pathology reports for the macroscopic report and the microscopic examination must contain 100% of the microscopic examination of the guideline. The following information is required: Site Tumour invasion depth (pT classification) Status of the regional lymph nodes (pN classification) Number of lymph nodes analysed Number of lymph nodes analysed Number of lymph nodes affected Grading The pathologist must always indicate the resection edges and the minimum safety distance (quality indicator derived from the guideline); (deviations must be explained). R classification TME quality (quality indicator derived from the guideline). CRM quality Degree of tumour regression in the case of neoadjuvant therapy (optional).		In-situ hybridisation	
These special services can only be delegated to pathological institutes. The institutes should have a recognised QM system or a valid accreditation or be able to document successful participation in round robin tests. 8.4 Frozen section analysis (cryosection) • The technical and organisational prerequisites for frozen section analysis must be fulfilled. • An operational cryostat must be available • Virtual slide telepathology is not acceptable 8.5 Retention time • Archiving of paraffin blocks ≥ 10 years, • Retention of wet tissue ≥ 4 weeks. • Cryopreservation should also be possible 8.6 Parameters for frozen sections Time required and time measured from arrival in pathology (in min.) to announcing the result (benchmark max. 30 minutes) Evaluation of time needed: min./max./range figure 8.7 Pathology reports Pathology reports for the macroscopic report and the information of time needed: min./max./range figure 8.7 Pathology reports for the macroscopic report and the information required by the guideline. The following information is required: • Site • Tumour type acc. to WHO classification • Tumour invasion depth (pT classification) • Status of the regional lymph nodes (pN classification) • Status of the regional lymph nodes (pN classification) • Number of lymph nodes analysed • Number of lymph nodes analysed • Number of lymph nodes analysed • Retention time in time in the case of posadium in the case of neoadjuvant therapy (optional). • Page of tumour regression in the case of neoadjuvant therapy (optional).			
pathological institutes. The institutes should have a recognised QM system or a valid accreditation or be able to document successful participation in round robin tests. 8.4 Frozen section analysis (cryosection) • The technical and organisational prerequisites for frozen section analysis must be fulfilled. • An operational cryostat must be available • Virtual slide telepathology is not acceptable 8.5 Retention time • Archiving of paraffin blocks ≥ 10 years, • Retention of wet tissue ≥ 4 weeks. • Cryopreservation should also be possible 8.6 Parameters for frozen sections Time required and time measured from arrival in pathology (in min.) to announcing the result (benchmark max. 30 minutes) Evaluation of time needed: min./max./range figure 8.7 Pathology reports Pathology reports for the macroscopic report and the microscopic examination must contain 100% of the information required by the guideline. The following information is required: • Site • Tumour type acc. to WHO classification • Tumour invasion depth (pT classification) • Statús of the regional lymph nodes (pN classification) • Statús of the regional lymph nodes (pN classification) • Number of lymph nodes analysed • Number of lymph nodes affected • Grading • The pathologist must always indicate the resection edges and the minimum safety distance (quality indicator derived from the guideline); (deviations must be explained). • Relassification • Lymph/blood-vesset invasion • TME quality (quality indicator derived from the guideline)/CRM quality • Degree of tumour regression in the case of neoadjuvant therapy (optional). • Mandatory information pathology report		Wiolcodial patriology	
pathological institutes. The institutes should have a recognised QM system or a valid accreditation or be able to document successful participation in round robin tests. 8.4 Frozen section analysis (cryosection) • The technical and organisational prerequisites for frozen section analysis must be fulfilled. • An operational cryostat must be available • Virtual slide telepathology is not acceptable 8.5 Retention time • Archiving of paraffin blocks ≥ 10 years, • Retention of wet tissue ≥ 4 weeks. • Cryopreservation should also be possible 8.6 Parameters for frozen sections Time required and time measured from arrival in pathology (in min.) to announcing the result (benchmark max. 30 minutes) Evaluation of time needed: min./max./range figure 8.7 Pathology reports Pathology reports for the macroscopic report and the microscopic examination must contain 100% of the information required by the guideline. The following information is required: • Site • Tumour type acc. to WHO classification • Tumour invasion depth (pT classification) • Status of the regional lymph nodes (pN classification) • Status of the regional lymph nodes (pN classification) • Number of lymph nodes analysed • Number of lymph nodes affected • Grading • The pathologist must always indicate the resection edges and the minimum safety distance (quality indicator derived from the guideline); (deviations must be explained). • R classification • Lymph/blood-vessef invasion • TME quality (quality indicator derived from the guideline)/CRM quality • Degree of tumour regression in the case of neoaljuvant therapy (potional). • Mandatory information pathology report		These special services can only be delegated to	
recognised QM system or a valid accreditation or be able to document successful participation in round robin tests. 8.4 Frozen section analysis (cryosection) • The technical and organisational prerequisites for frozen section analysis must be fulfilled. • An operational cryostat must be available • Virtual slide telepathology is not acceptable 8.5 Retention time • Archiving of paraffin blocks ≥ 10 years, • Retention of wet tissue ≥ 4 weeks. • Cryopreservation should also be possible 8.6 Parameters for frozen sections Time required and time measured from arrival in pathology (in min.) to announcing the result (benchmark max. 30 minutes) Evaluation of time needed: min./max./range figure 8.7 Pathology reports Pathology reports for the macroscopic report and the microscopic examination must contain 100% of the information required by the guideline. The following information is required: • Site • Tumour type acc. to WHO classification • Tumour invasion depth (pT classification) • Status of the regional lymph nodes (pN classification) • Number of lymph nodes analysed • Number of lymph nodes flected • Grading • The pathologist must always indicate the resection edges and the minimum safety distance (quality indicator derived from the guideline); (deviations must be explained). • Relassification • Lymph/blood-vessel invasion • TME quality (quality indicator derived from the guideline) (CRM quality • Degree of tumour regression in the case of neoally undicator information pathology report			
able to document successful participation in round robin tests. 8.4 Frozen section analysis (cryosection) • The technical and organisational prerequisites for frozen section analysis must be fulfilled. • An operational cryostat must be available • Virtual slide telepathology is not acceptable 8.5 Retention time • Archiving of paraffin blocks ≥ 10 years, • Retention of wet tissue ≥ 4 weeks. • Cryopreservation should also be possible 8.6 Parameters for frozen sections Time required and time measured from arrival in pathology (in min.) to announcing the result (benchmark max. 30 minutes) Evaluation of time needed: min./max./range figure 8.7 Pathology reports Pat			
robin tests. 8.4 Frozen section analysis (cryosection) • The technical and organisational prerequisites for frozen section analysis must be fulfilled. • An operational cryostat must be available • Virtual slide telepathology is not acceptable 8.5 Retention time • Archiving of paraffin blocks ≥ 10 years, • Retention of wet tissue ≥ 4 weeks. • Cryopreservation should also be possible 8.6 Parameters for frozen sections Time required and time measured from arrival in pathology (in min.) to announcing the result (benchmark max. 30 minutes) Evaluation of time needed: min./max./range figure 8.7 Pathology reports Pathology reports for the macroscopic report and the microscopic examination must contain 100% of the information required by the guideline. The following information is required: • Site • Tumour type acc. to WHO classification • Tumour invasion depth (pT classification) • Status of the regional lymph nodes (pN classification) • Status of the regional lymph nodes (pN classification) • Number of lymph nodes affected • Grading • The pathologist must always indicate the resection edges and the minimum safety distance (quality indicator derived from the guideline); (deviations must be explained). • R classification • Lymph/blood-vessel invasion • TME quality (quality indicator derived from the guideline)/CRM quality • Degree of tumour regression in the case of neoadjuvant therapy (optional). *Pan*			
8.4 Frozen section analysis (cryosection) • The technical and organisational prerequisites for frozen section analysis must be fulfilled. • An operational cryostat must be available • Virtual slide telepathology is not acceptable 8.5 Retention time • Archiving of paraffin blocks ≥ 10 years, • Retention of wet tissue ≥ 4 weeks. • Cryopreservation should also be possible 8.6 Parameters for frozen sections Time required and time measured from arrival in pathology (in min.) to announcing the result (benchmark max. 30 minutes) Evaluation of time needed: min./max./range figure 8.7 Pathology reports Pathology reports of the macroscopic report and the microscopic examination must contain 100% of the information required by the guideline. The following information is required: • Site • Tumour type acc. to WHO classification • Tumour invasion depth (pT classification) • Status of the regional lymph nodes (pN classification) • Status of the regional lymph nodes (pN classification) • Number of lymph nodes affected • Grading • The pathologist must always indicate the resection edges and the minimum safety distance (quality indicator derived from the guideline); (deviations must be explained). • R classification • Lymph/blood-vessef invasion • TME quality (quality indicator derived from the guideline)/CRM quality • Degree of tumour regression in the case of neoadjuvant therapy (optional). *Pan** Mandatory information pathology report			
The technical and organisational prerequisites for frozen section analysis must be fulfilled. An operational cryostat must be available Virtual slide telepathology is not acceptable 8.5 Retention time Archiving of paraffin blocks ≥ 10 years, Retention of wet tissue ≥ 4 weeks, Cryopreservation should also be possible 8.6 Rameters for frozen sections Time required and time measured from arrival in pathology (in min.) to announcing the result (benchmark max. 30 minutes) Evaluation of time needed: min./max./range figure 8.7 Pathology reports Pathology reports for the macroscopic report and the microscopic examination must contain 100% of the information required by the guideline. The following information is required: Site Tumour type acc. to WHO classification Tumour invasion depth (pT classification) Status of the regional lymph nodes (pN classification) Status of the regional lymph nodes (pN classification) Number of lymph nodes affected Grading The pathologist must always indicate the resection edges and the minimum safety distance (quality indicator derived from the guideline); (deviations must be explained). R classification Lymph/blood-vessel invasion TME quality (quality indicator derived from the guideline)/CRM quality Degree of tumour regression in the case of neoadjuvant therapy (optional). Mandatory information pathology report	8.4		
- All - frozen section analysis must be fulfilled. • An operational cryostat must be available • Virtual slide telepathology is not acceptable 8.5 Retention time • Archiving of paraffin blocks ≥ 10 years, • Retention of wet tissue ≥ 4 weeks. • Cryopreservation should also be possible 8.6 Parameters for frozen sections Time required and time measured from arrival in pathology (in min.) to announcing the result (benchmark max. 30 minutes) Evaluation of time needed: min./max./range figure 8.7 Pathology reports Pathology reports for the macroscopic report and the microscopic examination must contain 100% of the information required by the guideline. The following information is required: • Site • Tumour type acc. to WHO classification • Tumour invasion depth (pT classification) • Status of the regional lymph nodes (pN classification) • Status of the regional lymph nodes (pN classification) • Number of lymph nodes affected • Grading • The pathologist must always indicate the resection edges and the minimum safety distance (quality indicator derived from the guideline); (deviations must be explained). • R classification • Lymph/blood-vessel invasion • TME quality (quality indicator derived from the guideline)/CRM quality • Degree of tumour regression in the case of neoadjuvant therapy (optional). • Mandatory information pathology report		, , ,	
An operational cryostat must be available Virtual slide telepathology is not acceptable Archiving of paraffin blocks ≥ 10 years, Archiving of paraffin blocks ≥ 10 years, Retention of wet tissue ≥ 4 weeks. Cryopreservation should also be possible Parameters for frozen sections Time required and time measured from arrival in pathology (in min.) to announcing the result (benchmark max. 30 minutes) Evaluation of time needed: min./max./range figure 8.7 Pathology reports Pathology reports for the macroscopic report and the microscopic examination must contain 100% of the information required by the guideline. The following information is required: Site Tumour type acc. to WHO classification Tumour invasion depth (pT classification) Status of the regional lymph nodes (pN classification) Status of the regional lymph nodes (pN classification) Number of lymph nodes affected Grading The pathologist must always indicate the resection edges and the minimum safety distance (quality indicator derived from the guideline); (deviations must be explained). R classification Lymph/blood-vessel invasion TME quality (quality indicator derived from the guideline)/CRM quality Degree of tumour regression in the case of neoadjuvant therapy (optional). Mandatory information pathology report	- All -		
Virtual slide telepathology is not acceptable Retention time Archiving of paraffin blocks ≥ 10 years, Retention of wet tissue ≥ 4 weeks. Cryopreservation should also be possible 8.6 Parameters for frozen sections Time required and time measured from arrival in pathology (in min.) to announcing the result (benchmark max. 30 minutes) Evaluation of time needed: min./max./range figure 8.7 Pathology reports for the macroscopic report and the microscopic examination must contain 100% of the information required by the guideline. The following information is required: Site Tumour type acc. to WHO classification Tumour invasion depth (pT classification) Status of the regional lymph nodes (pN classification) Number of lymph nodes analysed Number of lymph nodes affected Grading The pathologist must always indicate the resection edges and the minimum safety distance (quality indicator derived from the guideline); (deviations must be explained). R classification Lymph/blood-vessel invasion TME quality (quality indicator derived from the guideline)/CRM quality Degree of tumour regression in the case of neoadjuvant therapy (optional). Pan- Mandatory information pathology report			
8.5 Retention time Archiving of paraffin blocks ≥ 10 years, Retention of wet tissue ≥ 4 weeks. Cryopreservation should also be possible 8.6 Parameters for frozen sections Time required and time measured from arrival in pathology (in min.) to announcing the result (benchmark max. 30 minutes) Evaluation of time needed: min./max./range figure 8.7 Pathology reports Pathology reports for the macroscopic report and the microscopic examination must contain 100% of the information is required by the guideline. The following information is required: Site Tumour type acc. to WHO classification Tumour invasion depth (pT classification) Status of the regional lymph nodes (pN classification) Status of the regional lymph nodes (pN classification) Number of lymph nodes analysed Number of lymph nodes affected Grading The pathologist must always indicate the resection edges and the minimum safety distance (quality indicator derived from the guideline); (deviations must be explained). R classification Lymph/blood-vessel invasion TME quality (quality indicator derived from the guideline)/CRM quality Degree of tumour regression in the case of neoadjuvant therapy (optional). Pan- Mandatory information pathology report		· · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·	
Archiving of paraffin blocks ≥ 10 years, Retention of wet tissue ≥ 4 weeks. Cryopreservation should also be possible 8.6 Parameters for frozen sections Time required and time measured from arrival in pathology (in min.) to announcing the result (benchmark max. 30 minutes) Evaluation of time needed: min./max./range figure 8.7 Pathology reports Pathology reports Pathology reports and the microscopic examination must contain 100% of the information required by the guideline. The following information is required: Site Tumour type acc. to WHO classification Tumour invasion depth (pT classification) Status of the regional lymph nodes (pN classification) Number of lymph nodes analysed Number of lymph nodes affected Grading The pathologist must always indicate the resection edges and the minimum safety distance (quality indicator derived from the guideline); (deviations must be explained). R classification Lymph/blood-vessel invasion TME quality (quality indicator derived from the guideline)/CRM quality Degree of tumour regression in the case of neoadjuvant therapy (optional). Pan- Mandatory information pathology report	8.5		
- All - Retention of wet tissue ≥ 4 weeks. Cryopreservation should also be possible Parameters for frozen sections Time required and time measured from arrival in pathology (in min.) to announcing the result (benchmark max. 30 minutes) Evaluation of time needed: min./max./range figure 8.7 Pathology reports Pathology reports for the macroscopic report and the microscopic examination must contain 100% of the information required by the guideline. The following information is required: Site Tumour type acc. to WHO classification Tumour invasion depth (pT classification) Status of the regional lymph nodes (pN classification) Number of lymph nodes analysed Number of lymph nodes affected Grading The pathologist must always indicate the resection edges and the minimum safety distance (quality indicator derived from the guideline); (deviations must be explained). R classification Lymph/blood-vessel invasion TME quality (quality indicator derived from the guideline)/CRM quality Degree of tumour regression in the case of neoadjuvant therapy (optional). Pan- Mandatory information pathology report	3.0		
Cryopreservation should also be possible 8.6 Parameters for frozen sections Time required and time measured from arrival in pathology (in min.) to announcing the result (benchmark max. 30 minutes) Evaluation of time needed: min./max./range figure 8.7 Pathology reports Pathology reports pathology reports to the macroscopic report and the microscopic examination must contain 100% of the information required by the guideline. The following information is required: Site Tumour type acc. to WHO classification Tumour invasion depth (pT classification) Status of the regional lymph nodes (pN classification) Number of lymph nodes analysed Number of lymph nodes affected Grading The pathologist must always indicate the resection edges and the minimum safety distance (quality indicator derived from the guideline); (deviations must be explained). R classification Lymph/blood-vessel invasion TME quality (quality indicator derived from the guideline)/CRM quality Degree of tumour regression in the case of neoadjuvant therapy (optional). Pan Mandatory information pathology report	- All -		
8.6 Parameters for frozen sections Time required and time measured from arrival in pathology (in min.) to announcing the result (benchmark max. 30 minutes) Evaluation of time needed: min./max./range figure 8.7 Pathology reports Pathology reports or the macroscopic report and the microscopic examination must contain 100% of the information required by the guideline. The following information is required: Site Tumour type acc. to WHO classification Tumour invasion depth (pT classification) Status of the regional lymph nodes (pN classification) Number of lymph nodes analysed Number of lymph nodes affected Grading The pathologist must always indicate the resection edges and the minimum safety distance (quality indicator derived from the guideline); (deviations must be explained). R classification Lymph/blood-vessel invasion TME quality (quality indicator derived from the guideline)/CRM quality Degree of tumour regression in the case of neoadjuvant therapy (optional). Pan- Mandatory information pathology report			
Time required and time measured from arrival in pathology (in min.) to announcing the result (benchmark max. 30 minutes) Evaluation of time needed: min./max./range figure 8.7 Pathology reports Pathology reports for the macroscopic report and the microscopic examination must contain 100% of the information required by the guideline. The following information is required: Site Tumour type acc. to WHO classification Tumour invasion depth (pT classification) Status of the regional lymph nodes (pN classification) Number of lymph nodes analysed Number of lymph nodes affected Grading The pathologist must always indicate the resection edges and the minimum safety distance (quality indicator derived from the guideline); (deviations must be explained). R classification Lymph/blood-vessel invasion TME quality (quality indicator derived from the guideline)/CRM quality Degree of tumour regression in the case of neoadjuvant therapy (optional).	8.6		
- All - thology (in min.) to announcing the result (benchmark max. 30 minutes) Evaluation of time needed: min./max./range figure 8.7 Pathology reports Pathology reports or the macroscopic report and the microscopic examination must contain 100% of the information required by the guideline. The following information is required: Site Tumour type acc. to WHO classification Tumour invasion depth (pT classification) Status of the regional lymph nodes (pN classification) Number of lymph nodes analysed Number of lymph nodes affected Grading The pathologist must always indicate the resection edges and the minimum safety distance (quality indicator derived from the guideline); (deviations must be explained). R classification Lymph/blood-vessel invasion TME quality (quality indicator derived from the guideline)/CRM quality Degree of tumour regression in the case of neoadjuvant therapy (optional).	0.0		
max. 30 minutes) Evaluation of time needed: min./max./range figure 8.7 Pathology reports Pathology reports for the macroscopic report and the microscopic examination must contain 100% of the information required by the guideline. The following information is required: Site Tumour type acc. to WHO classification Tumour invasion depth (pT classification) Status of the regional lymph nodes (pN classification) Number of lymph nodes analysed Number of lymph nodes affected Grading The pathologist must always indicate the resection edges and the minimum safety distance (quality indicator derived from the guideline); (deviations must be explained). R classification Lymph/blood-vessel invasion TME quality (quality indicator derived from the guideline)/CRM quality Degree of tumour regression in the case of neoadjuvant therapy (optional).	- All -		
Evaluation of time needed: min./max./range figure 8.7 Pathology reports Pathology reports for the macroscopic report and the microscopic examination must contain 100% of the information required by the guideline. The following information is required: Site Tumour type acc. to WHO classification Tumour invasion depth (pT classification) Status of the regional lymph nodes (pN classification) Number of lymph nodes analysed Number of lymph nodes affected Grading The pathologist must always indicate the resection edges and the minimum safety distance (quality indicator derived from the guideline); (deviations must be explained). R classification Lymph/blood-vessel invasion TME quality (quality indicator derived from the guideline)/CRM quality Degree of tumour regression in the case of neoadjuvant therapy (optional).	7 (11	37 \ , ,	
8.7 Pathology reports Pathology reports for the macroscopic report and the microscopic examination must contain 100% of the information required by the guideline. The following information is required: Site Tumour type acc. to WHO classification Tumour invasion depth (pT classification) Status of the regional lymph nodes (pN classification) Number of lymph nodes analysed Number of lymph nodes affected Grading The pathologist must always indicate the resection edges and the minimum safety distance (quality indicator derived from the guideline); (deviations must be explained). R classification Lymph/blood-vessel invasion TME quality (quality indicator derived from the guideline)/CRM quality Degree of tumour regression in the case of neoadjuvant therapy (optional).			
Pathology reports for the macroscopic report and the microscopic examination must contain 100% of the information required by the guideline. The following information is required: Site Tumour type acc. to WHO classification Tumour invasion depth (pT classification) Status of the regional lymph nodes (pN classification) Number of lymph nodes analysed Number of lymph nodes affected Grading The pathologist must always indicate the resection edges and the minimum safety distance (quality indicator derived from the guideline); (deviations must be explained). R classification Lymph/blood-vessel invasion TME quality (quality indicator derived from the guideline)/CRM quality Degree of tumour regression in the case of neoadjuvant therapy (optional).	0.7		
-Colorectal- microscopic examination must contain 100% of the information required by the guideline. The following information is required: Site Tumour type acc. to WHO classification Tumour invasion depth (pT classification) Status of the regional lymph nodes (pN classification) Number of lymph nodes analysed Number of lymph nodes affected Grading The pathologist must always indicate the resection edges and the minimum safety distance (quality indicator derived from the guideline); (deviations must be explained). R classification Lymph/blood-vessel invasion TME quality (quality indicator derived from the guideline)/CRM quality Degree of tumour regression in the case of neoadjuvant therapy (optional).	0.7		
information required by the guideline. The following information is required: Site Tumour type acc. to WHO classification Tumour invasion depth (pT classification) Status of the regional lymph nodes (pN classification) Number of lymph nodes analysed Number of lymph nodes affected Grading The pathologist must always indicate the resection edges and the minimum safety distance (quality indicator derived from the guideline); (deviations must be explained). R classification Lymph/blood-vessel invasion TME quality (quality indicator derived from the guideline)/CRM quality Degree of tumour regression in the case of neoadjuvant therapy (optional).	-Colo-		
information is required: Site Tumour type acc. to WHO classification Tumour invasion depth (pT classification) Status of the regional lymph nodes (pN classification) Number of lymph nodes analysed Number of lymph nodes affected Grading The pathologist must always indicate the resection edges and the minimum safety distance (quality indicator derived from the guideline); (deviations must be explained). R classification Lymph/blood-vessel invasion TME quality (quality indicator derived from the guideline)/CRM quality Degree of tumour regression in the case of neoadjuvant therapy (optional).			
Site Tumour type acc. to WHO classification Tumour invasion depth (pT classification) Status of the regional lymph nodes (pN classification) Number of lymph nodes analysed Number of lymph nodes affected Grading The pathologist must always indicate the resection edges and the minimum safety distance (quality indicator derived from the guideline); (deviations must be explained). R classification Lymph/blood-vessel invasion TME quality (quality indicator derived from the guideline)/CRM quality Degree of tumour regression in the case of neoadjuvant therapy (optional). Pan- Mandatory information pathology report			
Tumour type acc. to WHO classification Tumour invasion depth (pT classification) Status of the regional lymph nodes (pN classification) Number of lymph nodes analysed Number of lymph nodes affected Grading The pathologist must always indicate the resection edges and the minimum safety distance (quality indicator derived from the guideline); (deviations must be explained). R classification Lymph/blood-vessel invasion TME quality (quality indicator derived from the guideline)/CRM quality Degree of tumour regression in the case of neoadjuvant therapy (optional). Pan- Mandatory information pathology report			
 Tumour invasion depth (pT classification) Status of the regional lymph nodes (pN classification) Number of lymph nodes analysed Number of lymph nodes affected Grading The pathologist must always indicate the resection edges and the minimum safety distance (quality indicator derived from the guideline); (deviations must be explained). R classification Lymph/blood-vessel invasion TME quality (quality indicator derived from the guideline)/CRM quality Degree of tumour regression in the case of neoadjuvant therapy (optional). Pan-Mandatory information pathology report 			
 Status of the regional lymph nodes (pN classification) Number of lymph nodes analysed Number of lymph nodes affected Grading The pathologist must always indicate the resection edges and the minimum safety distance (quality indicator derived from the guideline); (deviations must be explained). R classification Lymph/blood-vessel invasion TME quality (quality indicator derived from the guideline)/CRM quality Degree of tumour regression in the case of neoadjuvant therapy (optional). 			
cation) Number of lymph nodes analysed Number of lymph nodes affected Grading The pathologist must always indicate the resection edges and the minimum safety distance (quality indicator derived from the guideline); (deviations must be explained). R classification Lymph/blood-vessel invasion TME quality (quality indicator derived from the guideline)/CRM quality Degree of tumour regression in the case of neoadjuvant therapy (optional).			
 Number of lymph nodes analysed Number of lymph nodes affected Grading The pathologist must always indicate the resection edges and the minimum safety distance (quality indicator derived from the guideline); (deviations must be explained). R classification Lymph/blood-vessel invasion TME quality (quality indicator derived from the guideline)/CRM quality Degree of tumour regression in the case of neoadjuvant therapy (optional). -Pan-Mandatory information pathology report 			
 Number of lymph nodes affected Grading The pathologist must always indicate the resection edges and the minimum safety distance (quality indicator derived from the guideline); (deviations must be explained). R classification Lymph/blood-vessel invasion TME quality (quality indicator derived from the guideline)/CRM quality Degree of tumour regression in the case of neoadjuvant therapy (optional). -Pan-Mandatory information pathology report 			
Grading The pathologist must always indicate the resection edges and the minimum safety distance (quality indicator derived from the guideline); (deviations must be explained). R classification Lymph/blood-vessel invasion TME quality (quality indicator derived from the guideline)/CRM quality Degree of tumour regression in the case of neoadjuvant therapy (optional). - Pan- Mandatory information pathology report			
The pathologist must always indicate the resection edges and the minimum safety distance (quality indicator derived from the guideline); (deviations must be explained). R classification Lymph/blood-vessel invasion TME quality (quality indicator derived from the guideline)/CRM quality Degree of tumour regression in the case of neoadjuvant therapy (optional). Pan- Mandatory information pathology report			
tion edges and the minimum safety distance (quality indicator derived from the guideline); (deviations must be explained). R classification Lymph/blood-vessel invasion TME quality (quality indicator derived from the guideline)/CRM quality Degree of tumour regression in the case of neo-adjuvant therapy (optional). Pan-Mandatory information pathology report			
(quality indicator derived from the guideline); (deviations must be explained). R classification Lymph/blood-vessel invasion TME quality (quality indicator derived from the guideline)/CRM quality Degree of tumour regression in the case of neoadjuvant therapy (optional). - Pan- Mandatory information pathology report			
viations must be explained). R classification Lymph/blood-vessel invasion TME quality (quality indicator derived from the guideline)/CRM quality Degree of tumour regression in the case of neo-adjuvant therapy (optional). - Pan- Mandatory information pathology report			
R classification Lymph/blood-vessel invasion TME quality (quality indicator derived from the guideline)/CRM quality Degree of tumour regression in the case of neo-adjuvant therapy (optional). - Pan-Mandatory information pathology report		7: \	
Lymph/blood-vessel invasion TME quality (quality indicator derived from the guideline)/CRM quality Degree of tumour regression in the case of neo-adjuvant therapy (optional). - Pan-Mandatory information pathology report			
TME quality (quality indicator derived from the guideline)/CRM quality Degree of tumour regression in the case of neo-adjuvant therapy (optional). - Pan- Mandatory information pathology report			
guideline)/CRM quality Degree of tumour regression in the case of neo-adjuvant therapy (optional). - Pan-Mandatory information pathology report			
Degree of tumour regression in the case of neo- adjuvant therapy (optional). - Pan- Mandatory information pathology report			
adjuvant therapy (optional). - Pan- Mandatory information pathology report		, , , , , , , , , , , , , , , , , , , ,	
- Pan- Mandatory information pathology report			
	Don		
FORMS TO THE CONTRACT OF THE C	- Pan- creas -	· · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·	
Status of the resection area with regard to the re-	5,000		
maining part of the pancreas and the circumfer-			
ential resection margins (marked in Indian ink)		• • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • •	
R0 narrow/wide			
Lymph vessel invasion			
vein invasion			
perineural sheath invasion		perineural sheath invasion	





8. Pathology

Sec-	Requirements	Explanatory remarks of the Centre
tion		
8.8	Time until histological result	
	Biopsy specimens/polyps: max. 3 working days	
- All -	Surgical specimens max. 5 working days	
8.9	Lymph nodes	
colorec-	At least 12 lymph nodes must be examined in the	
tal	surgical specimen	
- Pan-	At least 12 regional lymph nodes in the surgical	
creas	specimen are to be examined.	

9. Palliative care and hospice work

Sec-	Requirements	Explanatory remarks of the Centre
tion	·	
9.1	Palliative care	
- All -	Cooperation agreements with providers of special- ised in- and outpatient palliative care, hospices and palliative wards must be documented	
9.2	Supportive therapy and symptom alleviation in the	
- All -	 palliative situation The options of supportive/palliative inpatient therapy are to be described (SOP/algorithm). A pain management therapist must be available. The pain management SOP (algorithm) is to be 	
	described and confirmed using documented cases for the assessment period. Access to nutritional counselling is to be described and confirmed using documented cases for the assessment period.	
	Access to psycho-oncological and psychosocial care and pastoral care is to be described.	
	If provided by cooperation partners, a cooperation agreement is to be entered into for the above requirements.	

10. Tumour documentation/Outcome quality

Sec- tion	Requirements	Explanatory remarks of the Centre
10.1 - All -	Tumour documentation system A system of tumour documentation that contains patient data for a period of at least 3 months must be in place at the time of initial certification	
10.2 - All -	Period covered by the data The full data are to be presented for the respective last calendar year.	





10. Tumour documentation/Outcome quality

Sec-	Requirements	Explanatory remarks of the Centre
tion	·	
10.3	Documentation officer	
	The name of at least 1 documentation officer is to	
- All -	be given , name/function:	
	 Tasks documentation officer: Ensuring and monitoring the timely, full, complete and correct transfer and quality of the patient data that are relevant for certification by all cooperation partners to the cancer registry. Motivation of trans-sectoral cooperation with participating specialty units in the cancer registry (pathology reports, radiotherapy and medicinal treatments). Qualification and support for the staff involved in data collection Regular analysis of evaluations particularly over the course of time. 	







Annex Key Figures

General information for	The actual current values are to be given (no estimates).
processing the annex	Data must normally refer to a calendar year.
	Data may be no older than 1 year
	if the "target values" are not achieved for one point, then an explanation is to be given at the corresponding spot in the Catalogue of Requirements

Colorectal:

Basic Data

Primary cases Definition in accord-	Surgic	al		Endoscopically (ex-	Non-surgic	al	Total
ance with CoR	E ¹	N 1)	Transanal wall re- section (TER)	cept TWR) 1)	palliative	Watch and Wait (not en- doscopi- cally curative)	
Primary cases							
Colon 3)							
Rectum 3)							

The Catalogue of Requirements is based on the TNM classification of malignant tumours, 8th edition 2017, ICD classification ICD-10-GM 2017

- 1) E= elective, N= emergency
- 2) Watch & Wait patients are patients that have been newly diagnosed with a rectum carcinoma, which were pre-treated with radio-therapy and/or chemo-therapy with a clinical full remission which were not yet treated surgically. If these patients have a tumour recurrence or other reasons for secondary surgical treatment, they can be counted as surgical primary case.





Key figures

No	Key figure definition	Key figure target	Numerator	Denominator	Plausi- bility Unclear	Target Value	Plausi- bility un- clear	Current value	If target value/ plausibility border is not met please give reasons / cause; Action taken/planned (if reasons are plausible, no action is required)
1	Pre-therapeutic case presentation	Pre-therapeutic presentation of all patients with CC UICC stage IV or rectum carcinoma	Patients pre- sented at an in- terdisciplinary tumour board before therapy	"Elective" patients with RC and "elec- tive" all patients with stage IV CC		≥ 95%		Numerator Denominator %	
2	Pre-therapeutic case presentation: re-lapses/metachronous metastases	Pre-therapeutic presentation of all patients with relapse/meta-chronous metastases	Patients with re- lapse or new metastases pre- sented at the pre-therapeutic conference	Patients with re- lapse or new me- tastases		≥ 95%		Numerator Denominator %	
3	Post-operative presentation of all primary-case patients	Post-operative presentation of all primary-case patients	Operative and endoscopic primary cases presented at the post-operative conference	Operative and endoscopic primary cases		≥ 95%	7	Numerator Denominator %	
4	Psycho-oncological counselling	Appropriate rate of psycho-oncological counselling	Patients given inpatient or outpatient psychooncological counselling (length of session ≥ 25 min)	Total primary cases + patients with relapse/new metastases	< 20%		> 95%	Numerator Denominator %	
5	Social services counselling	As high a rate of patients as possible who have been counselled by the social services	Inpatients or out- patients who re- ceived counsel- ling from the so- cial services	Total primary cases + patients with relapse/new metastases	< 45%		100%	Numerator Denominator %	
6	Study participation	Inclusion of as many patients as possible in studies	Patients of the CrCC included in a study or col- orectal preven- tion study	Total primary cases		≥ 5%	> 50%	Numerator Denominator %	
7	CRC patients with a recorded family history	As high rate as possible of the family history	Primary-case patients with a CRC and a completed patient questionnaire	Total primary cases	< 5%		100%	Numerator Denominator %	
8	Genetic counselling		quodiorinano		< 5%		100%	Numerator	





No	Key figure definition	Key figure target	Numerator	Denominator	Plausi- bility Unclear	Target Value	Plausi- bility un- clear	Current value	If target value/ plausibility border is not met please give reasons / cause; Action taken/planned (if reasons are plausible, no action is required)
		As high a counsel- ling rate as possible	Primary-case patients with a positive patient questionnaire advised to seek genetic counsel- ling	Primary cases with a positive patient questionnaire				Denominator %	
9	MMR-assessment	As high a rate as possible of MMR assessment of patients < 50 years old with CRC	Patients with immunohisto- chemical as- sessment of mismatch repair (MMR) proteins.	Patients with initial CRC diagnosis < 50 years old		≥ 90%		Numerator Denominator %	
10	Complication rate therapeutic colonoscopies	As low a complica- tion rate as possible among therapeutic colonoscopies	Therapeutic co- lonoscopies with complications (bleeding requir- ing re-interven- tion (recolonos- copy, operation) or a transfusion and/or perfora- tion)	Therapeutic colonoscopies per colonoscopy unit (not only CrCC patients)	< 0,01%	≤ 1%		Numerator Denominator %	
11	Complete elective colon- oscopies	As far as possible complete elective colonoscopies by the CCC	Complete elective colonoscopies	Elective colonos- copies for each colonoscopy unit of the CrCC (not only CrCC pa- tients) (Are counted: intention: complete colonos- copy)		≥ 95%	100%	Numerator Denominator %	
12	Information on distance to mesorectal fascia in the diagnostic report (RC of the lower and middle third)	Provide information as frequently as possible in the diag- nostic findings report	Patients with in- formation on dis- tance to mesorectal fas- cia in the diag- nostic report	Patients with RC of the middle and lower third and MRI or thin slice CT of the pelvis	< 90%		100%	Numerator Denominator %	
13	Operative primary cases: colon	See target value	Operative pri- mary cases: co- lon (please note			≥ 30		Number	





No	Key figure definition	Key figure target	Numerator	Denominator	Plausi- bility Unclear	Target Value	Plausi- bility un- clear	Current value	If target value/ plausibility border is not met please give reasons / cause; Action taken/planned (if reasons are plausible, no action is required)
			attached defini- tion of primary case)						
14	Operative primary cases: rectum	See target value	Operative pri- mary cases: rec- tum, incl. transanal wall resection (please note at- tached definition of primary case)	-		≥ 20	X	Number	
15	Revision Surgery: colon	As low a rate of revision surgery after elective operations as possible	Revision surgery due to perioper- ative complica- tions within 30 d of elective sur- gery	Elective colon surgery	< 0,01%	≤ 15%	> 10%	Numerator Denominator %	
16	Revision Surgery: rectum	As low a rate of revision surgery after elective operations as possible	Revision surgery due to perioper- ative complica- tions within 30 d of elective sur- gery (without transanal wall resection)	Total number of elective rectum ops (without TWR)	< 0,01%	≤ 15%	> 10%	Numerator Denominator %	
17	Post-operative wound infection	As low a rate of post-operative wound infections requiring surgical wound revision (rinsing, spreading, VAC bandage) as possible	Post-operative wound infection within 30 d of elective surgery requiring surgi- cal wound revi- sion (rinsing, spreading,VAC bandage)	Elective opera- tions of the CrCC (without transanal wall resection)	< 0,01%		≤ 15%	Numerator Denominator %	
18	Anastomotic insufficiency: colon	As low a rate of anastomotic insuffi- ciency after elective colon surgery as possible	Colon anasto- motic insufficien- cies requiring re- intervention after elective surgery	Patients with CC in whom anasto- mosis was per- formed in an elec- tive tumour resec- tion	< 0,01%	≤ 6%		Numerator Denominator %	
19					< 0,01%	≤ 15%		Numerator	





No	Key figure definition	Key figure target	Numerator	Denominator	Plausi- bility Unclear	Target Value	Plausi- bility un- clear	Current value	If target value/ plausibility border is not met please give reasons / cause; Action taken/planned (if reasons are plausible, no action is required)
	Anastomotic insufficiency: rectum	As low a rate of anastomotic insuffi- ciency after elective rectum surgery as possible	Patients with grade B (requiring antibiotic administration but not interventional drainage or transanal lavage/drainage or grade C (re-)laparotomy) anastomotic insufficiency	Patients with RC in whom anasto- mosis was per- formed in an elec- tive tumour resec- tion (without transanal wall re- section)				Denominator %	
20	Post-operative mortality	As low a rate of post-operative deaths after elective surgery as possible	Post-operative patient deaths with 30 d of elective surgery	Electively oper- ated patients (without transanal wall resection)	< 0,01%	≤ 5%		Numerator Denominator %	
21	Local R0 resections: co- lon	As high a rate of lo- cal R0 resections as possible	Local R0 resections - colon -after completion of surgical treatment	Elective colon op- erations according to primary case definition (opera- tive)		≥ 90%		Numerator Denominator %	
22	Local R0 resections: rectum	As high a rate of lo- cal R0 resections as possible	Local R0 resec- tions – rectum - after completion of surgical treat- ment	Elective rectum operations accord- ing to primary case definition (operative), with- out transanal wall		≥ 90%		Numerator Denominator %	
23	Marking of stoma position	As frequent as possible pre-operative marking of stoma position	Patients with preoperative marking of stoma position	resection Patients with RC who had elective surgery to install a stoma (without transanal wall re- section)	< 40%		100%	Numerator Denominator %	
24	Primary resection of liver metastases (UICC stage IV CRC)	≥ 15% primary resection of liver metastases in patients with UICC stage IV CRC	Primary-case patients with UICC stage IV CRC who underwent resection of liver metastases	Primary-case pa- tients with UICC stage IV CRC who only have liver me- tastases (without transanal wall re- section)		≥ 15% ≥ 10%		Numerator Denominator % Numerator	





No	Key figure definition	Key figure target	Numerator	Denominator	Plausi- bility Unclear	Target Value	Plausi- bility un- clear	Current value	If target value/ plausibility border is not met please give reasons / cause; Action taken/planned (if reasons are plausible, no action is required)
	Secondary resection of liver metastases (UICC stage IV CRC)	≥ 10% secondary resection of liver metastases in patients with UICC stage IV CRC IV	Primary-case patients with UICC stage IV CRC who underwent secondary resection of liver metastases after chemotherapy	Primary-case patients with UICC stage IV CRC with primarily non-resectable only liver metastases who received chemotherapy (without transanal wall resection)				Denominator %	
26	Adjuvant chemothera- pies: colon (UICC stage	As high a rate of chemotherapies as	Patients with a UICC stage III	Patients with a UICC stage III co-		≥ 70%	100%	Numerator Denominator	
	III)	possible in patients	colon carcinoma	lon carcinoma who					
		with UICC stage III colon carcinoma	who received adjuvant chemo-therapy	had a R0 resection of the primary tu- mour				%	
27	Neoadjuvant radiothera- pies or radiochemother-	As high rate as possible of neoadi, radi-	Patients who re- ceived neoadju-	Patients with RC of the middle and		≥ 80%	100%	Numerator Denominator	
	apies (clinical UICC	otherapies or radi-	vant radiother-	lower third (= up to				Denominator	
	stages II and III)	ochemotherapies in patients with UICC	apy or radi- ochemotherapy	12cm from anus) and the TNM cate-					
		stage II and III rec-	Ochemotherapy	gories cT3, 4/cM0				0/	
		tum carcinoma (clini- cal)		and/or cN1, 2/cM0 who received elec-				%	
		(Cai)		tive surgery (=					
				clinical UICC stages II and III),					
				without transanal					
00	Overlity of the TMF ree	As as a sure patients as	Detiente with	wall resection		≥ 80%	100%	Numanatan	
28	Quality of the TME rectum specimen (infor-	As many patients as possible with good-	Patients with good-to-moder-	Patients with RC in whom the pri-		≥ 80%	100%	Numerator Denominator	
	mation from pathology)	to moderate-quality	ate quality	mary tumour was				Denominator	
		TME rectum sam- ples	(grade 1: mesorectal fas-	electively resected in the form of a				%	
		pies	cia or grade 2:	TME or PME.					
			intramesorectal	(without transanal					
29	Information on resection	As frequent as pos-	excisions) TME Patients in	wall resection) Patients with RC	< 15%		100%	Numerator	
1	edge	sible information on	whom the dis-	in whom the pri-				Denominator	
		resection edge	tance from the	mary tumour was					
			aboral edge of the tumour to	electively resected in the form of a					
				TME or PME.					





No	Key figure definition	Key figure target	Numerator	Denominator	Plausi- bility Unclear	Target Value	Plausi- bility un- clear	Current value	If target value/ plausibility border is not met please give reasons / cause; Action taken/planned (if reasons are plausible, no action is required)
			the aboral resec- tion margin and the distance from the tumour to the circumfer- ential mesorec- tal resection level was docu- mented in mm.	(without transanal wall resection)				%	
30	Lymph node examination	≥ 12 lymph nodes are pathologically examined in >95% of the patients with lymphadenectomy	Patients with be- ginning of chem- otherapy within 8 weeks after surgery	Patients with UICC stage III colon car- cinoma who had received adjuvant chemotherapy (= Numerator key fig- ure 26)		≥ 95%	100%	Numerator Denominator %	
31	Beginning of the adjuvant chemotherapy	As frequent as possible beginning of the adj. Chemotherapy within the indicated time	Patients with be- ginning of chem- otherapy within 8 weeks after surgery	Patients with UICC stage III colon carcinoma who had received adjuvant chemotherapy (= Numerator key figure 26)	< 70%		> 95%	Numerator Denominator %	





Pancreas:

Basic Data

Primary cases	IA	IB	IIA	IIB	III	IV	Total
Pancreatic cancer Definition in accordance with CR 1.2.0	T1-N0-M0	T2-N0-M0	T3-N0-M0	T1-N1-M0 T2-N1-M0 T3-N1-Mo	T4 each N-M0 T1/T2/T3-N2-M0	Each T- Each N- M1	
Primary cases pan- creatic cancer = exocrine pancreatic cancer							
of which surgical pri- mary cases (Only ICD-10 C25)					_6/		

Primary cases of neuroendocrine tumours (NETs) and neuroendocrine carcinomas (NECs)	
of which surgical primary cases	
(with complete or partial resection because of pancreatic cancer)	
Primary cases total	
Primary cases total	
Surgical expertise - Number of pancreatic resections	
(Left-sided resection of the pancreas, pancreatic head resection, total pancreatectomy because of any cancer)	

The Catalogue of Requirements is based on the TNM classification of malignant tumours, 8th edition 2017, ICD classification ICD-10-GM 2017





No	Key figure definition	Key figure target	Numerator	Denominator	Plausi- bility Unclear	Target Value	Plausi- bility un- clear	Current value	If target value/ plausibility border is not met please give reasons / cause; Action taken/planned (if reasons are plausible, no action is required)
1	Primary cases Centre	See target value	Primary cases	-		≥ 25		Number	
2	Pretherapeutic case presentation	Pretherapeutic presentation of all primary cases	Primary cases with pancreatic cancer that were presented at the pretherapeutic conference	Primary cases		≥ 95%		Numerator Denominator %	
3	Post-operative case presentation	Post-operative presentation of all primary cases	Surgical primary cases pancreas presented in the post-operative conference	Surgical primary cases pancreas (ICD-10 C25)				Numerator Denominator %	
4	Psycho-oncological care	Adequate rate of psycho-oncological care	Patients who received psycho- oncological care (length of consultation ≥ 25 min.)	Primary cases (= key figure 1) + patients with recurrence or new metastases	< 30%		> 95%	Numerator Denominator %	
5	Counselling social services	If possible, high rate of patients who re- ceived counselling from the social ser- vices	Patients who re- ceived counsel- ling from the so- cial services.	Primary cases (= key figure 1) + pa- tients with recur- rence or new me- tastases	< 45%		100%	Numerator Denominator %	
6	Study participation	Inclusion of as many patients as possible in studies	Patients with pancreatic can- cer (not only pri- mary cases) who were included in a study	Primary cases (= key figure 1)		≥ 5%	> 50%	Numerator Denominator %	
7 a	Endoscopy complications	If possible, low rate of endoscopy-specific complications	ERCP- specific complications Pan- creati- tis af- ter ERCP (CR 2.1)	'ERCPs for each endoscopy unit	< 0.01%	≤ 10%		Numerator Denominator	





No	Key figure definition	Key figure target	Numerator	Denominator	Plausi- bility Unclear	Target Value	Plausi- bility un- clear	Current value	If target value/ plausibility border is not met please give reasons / cause; Action taken/planned (if reasons are plausible, no action is required)
b			Bleeding and perforation after ERCP (CR 2.1)		< 0.01%	≤ 5%		%	
8	Surgical primary cases pancreas (only ICD-10 C25)	See target value	Surgical primary cases with complete or partial resection because of pancreatic cancer	-		≥ 12		Number	
9	Overall surgical expertise pancreas	See target value	Pancreatic resections because of any cancer (left-sided resection of the pancreas, pancreatic head resection, total pancreatectomy)			≥ 20		Number	
10	Revision surgeries pan- creas	If possible, low rate of revision surgeries after initial surgery	Revision surger- ies after peri-op- erative complica- tions within 30d of pancreatic re- section	Left-sided resec- tion of the pan- creas, pancreatic head resection, to- tal pancreatec- tomy because of any cancer	< 0.01%	≥ 10%		Numerator Denominator %	
11	Post-operative wound infections	If possible, low rate of post-operative wound infections requiring surgical wound revision (flushing, opening, VAC dressing)	Post-operative wound infection within 30d of pancreas resection requiring surgical wound revision (flushing, opening, VAC dressing)	Left-sided resec- tion of the pan- creas, pancreatic head resection, to- tal pancreatec- tomy because of any cancer	< 0.01%		> 10%	Numerator Denominator %	
12	Post-operative mortality	If possible, low rate of patients who die	Local R0 resec- tions pancreas		< 0.01%	≥ 5%		Numerator Denominator	





after completion of surgical therapy 13 Local R0 resections pances and research panc	No	Key figure definition	Key figure target	Numerator	Denominator	Plausi- bility Unclear	Target Value	Plausi- bility un- clear	Current value	If target value/ plausibility border is not met please give reasons / cause; Action taken/planned (if reasons are plausible, no action is required)
pancreas Pathology reports Pathology re				of surgical ther-	tion of the pan- creas, pancreatic head resection, to- tal pancreatec- tomy because of				%	
Adjuvant chemotherapy Adju	13					< 40%		100%		
tion lymph nodes in the surgical specimen surgical specimen surgical specimen surgical specimen surgical specimen surgical specimen after conclusion of surgery surgical specimen sur		pancreas	R0 resections	after completion of surgical ther-	with complete or partial resection because of pan-					
surgical specimen with ≥ 12 regional lymph nodes in the surgical specimen after conclusion of surgery 15 Table of Contents Pathology reports If possible, frequent complete pathology reports Pathology reports If possible, frequent complete pathology reports If possible, frequent adjuvant chemotherapy with gemeritation of affected to removed lymph nodes 16 Adjuvant chemotherapy with gemeritation and/or 5-FU folinic acid If possible, frequent adjuvant chemotherapy with gemeritation of affected to removed lymph nodes Surgical specimen with complete or points of surgical primary creates partial resection because of pancreatic cancer URC starges 1 III, R0 resection and adjuvant chemotherapy with gemeritation of affected to resection (without NET and NEC) Surgical primary cases surgical primary cases pancreatic cancer UICC stages III and R0 resection (without NET and NEC)	14					< 65%				
gional lymph nodes in the surgical specimen after conclusion of surgery LEC) who have undergone a lymphadenectomy. LEC) who have undergone a lymphade		tion								
Pathology reports Pathology reports Complete pathology reports Pathology repor				gional lymph nodes in the surgical speci- men after conclu- sion of surgery	partial resection because of pan- creatic cancer (without NET and NEC) who have undergone a lymphadenec- tomy.					
reports	15			Diagnostic re-		< 80%		100%		
adjuvant chemother- apy with gemcita- bine and/or 5-FU fo- linic acid adjuvant chemother- apy with gemcita- bine and/or 5-FU fo- linic acid cases pancreatic cancer UICC stages I-III, R0 resection and adjuvant chemotherapy with gemcitabine or 5- FU/folinic acid cases pancreatic cancer UICC stages I-III and R0 resection (without NET and NEC)			reports	primary cases with details of: pT, pN, M; tu- mour grading: ra- tio of affected to removed lymph nodes	cases		. 500		%	
apy with gemcitabine and/or 5-FU folinic acid cancer UICC stages I-III, R0 resection and adjuvant chemotherapy with gemcitabine or 5-FU/folinic acid cancer UICC stages I-III and R0 resection (without NET and NEC)	16	Adjuvant chemotherapy	If possible, frequent				≥ 50%			
			apy with gemcita- bine and/or 5-FU fo-	cancer UICC stages I-III, R0 resection and ad- juvant chemo- therapy with gemcitabine or 5-	cancer UICC stages I-III and R0 resection (without NET and				%	





No Key fig	igure definition	Key figure target	Numerator	Denominator	Plausi- bility Unclear	Target Value	Plausi- bility un- clear	Current value	If target value/ plausibility border is not met please give reasons / cause; Action taken/planned (if reasons are plausible, no action is required)
		If possible, frequent palliative chemother- apystages III and IV, ECOG 0-2	Primary cases with pancreatic cancer UICC stages III and IV, ECOG 0-2 and palliative chemo- therapy	Primary cases with pancreatic cancer UICC stages III (pallia- tive situation) and IV and ECOG 0-2 (without NET and NEC)				Denominator %	